AN ABSTRACT OF THE THESIS OF

 Omaira J. de Guanipa
 for the
 Master of Science Degree

 in
 Biology
 presented on
 December 16, 1983

 Title:
 Toxicity of Nucleic Acid Bases on Drosophila Cell Cultures

Sull 1 Oplan Abstract approved:

Monolayer cultures of Kc-H Drosophila cells were used to detect the effects of purine and pyrimidine compounds. Analysis of the end product of normal metabolism, uric acid, was done to detect effects of exogenous purime and pyrimidine derivatives. It was found that adenine, hypoxanthine, xanthine, and purine were toxic to Kc-H Drosophila cell cultures. A hyperproduction of uric acid was found as a result of adenine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine treatments which was reduced by thymine in both hypoxanthine and xanthine treated cells. These findings conclude that toxicity appears to be due both to an uric acid contribution from purine catabolism plus the ability of the compounds to feedback and starve cells of pyrimidines. This conclusion also was supported by the protective effects seen with guanine, cytosine, and thymidine treatments on adenine-treated cells. The hypothesis states that a possible regulatory connection exists between purine and pyrimidine synthesis probably due to the link of these pathways by their common substrate, phosphoribosylpyrophosphate (PP-ribose-P). Allopurinol, 8-azaguanine, aminopterin, and 2,6 diaminopurine were also tested for effects on Kc-H Drosophila cells. The results showed 2,6 diaminopurine, allopurinol, and aminopterin, by themselves, exerting no toxic effect on Drosophila cells. Allopurinol was found to inhibit hypoxanthine and xanthine toxic effects. Cells toxicity to 8-azaguanine is probably due to the inhibition of xanthine oxidase and therefore, the inhibition of the normal degradation of purines. Aminopterin showed inhibition of thymidine protective effects toward adenine-treated cells. A synergistic effect, exerted by aminopterin and adenine is suggested to be the factor that inhibited thymidine protective effects on <u>Drosophila</u> adenine-treated cells and resulted in their death. The studies done with Hep-2 cells were used to compare the results of the present study with those already found in human cell lines.

TOXICITY OF NUCLEIC ACID BASES ON DROSOPHILA CELL CULTURES

A Thesis Submitted to the Division of Biological Sciences Emporia State University

In Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Master of Science

> by Omaira J. de Guanipa December, 1983

Kultur - Septieni Ph.D Approved for Major Department

Approved for Graduate Council

438496

•

, *] * | | |

7

GATA PROGRAMME NOV 0 7 1984

iv

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my deepest appreciation and gratitude to Dr. Rodney J. Sobieski for his guidance, constructive help, patience, and understanding during the preparation of this thesis both as an advisor and a friend. Also I would like to express my gratitude to the members of my committee, Dr. John Parrish and Dr. Richard Keeling. Their assistance was greatly appreciated. I would especially like to thank my husband, Carlos, and my children, Carlos Eduardo and Carlos Esteban, for their support and patience. Finally I would like to thank Dr. Yen-Kuang Ho for his assistance in the preparation of this thesis and Mrs. Floy Schwilling for her support and the typing of this thesis.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PA	١GE
LIST OF TABLES	711
LIST OF FIGURES	.11
INTRODUCTION	1
MATERIALS AND METHODS	8
Experimental Cells	8
Cell Culture	8
Stock Solutions	9
Uric Acid Assay	10
Experimental Protocol	11
RESULTS	14
<u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells exposed to bases	14
LD ₅₀ for Adenine	14
Recovery of cells exposed to adenine	14
Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to purine antimetabolites	19
Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to purine intermediates	23
<u>Kc-H</u> Drosophila cells exposed to Thymidine	23
<u>Kc-H</u> Drosophila cells exposed to exogenous uric acid	30
DISCUSSION	34
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	40
LITERATURE CITED	43
APPENDICES	48

,

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE	PAGE
1	LD ₅₀ for adenine
2	The effects of various adenine concentrations on the viability and uric acid levels of cultured <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells
3	Comparative effects of various purines and pyrimidines on the growth of <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells and <u>Hep-2</u> cells 24
4	Summary of the Results from the <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> treatment with certain combinations of Purine and Pyrimidine derivatives

.

LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE		PA	GE
1	<u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells cultured in normal growth medium plus purine and pyrimidine bases $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} M)$	•	15 ⁻
2	Cells treated with a combination of purine and pyrimidine bases	•	17
3	Uric acid production by <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> adenine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M)-treated cells	•	21
4	Uric acid production (mgs %) by inosine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> treated cells	•	26
5	Uric acid production by <u>Drosophila</u> cells after purine intermediates-thymine treatment	•	28
6	Purine and pyrimidine biosynthetic pathways	•	33

.

INTRODUCTION

Nucleotide compounds consist of a nitrogenous base that is either a purine or pyrimidine derivative, a sugar, and one or more phosphate groups. These compounds participate in nearly all biochemical processes (43). When the purines, adenine or guanine, link to deoxyribose-5-phosphate, they form two of the four basic units involved in the genetic code of the chromosomal polynucleotide, deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA), which is replicated during cell division. In combination with ribose the same purines form two of the structural units of ribonucleic acid (RNA), which includes the messenger RNA transcribed from DNA and the transfer RNA involved in protein synthesis (3).

In addition, nucleotide derivatives are activated intermediates in many biosynthetic reactions. For example, uridine diphosphate-glucose (UDP-glucose) and cytidine diphosphate-diacylglycerol (CDPdiacylglycerol) are precursors of glycogen and phosphoglyceride, respectively. Adenosine 5'-triphosphate (ATP), an adenine nucleotide, is also the universal currency of energy in biological systems. Adenine nucleotides are components of three major coenzymes: nicotinamide adenine dinucleotide (NAD), flavin adenine dinucleotide (FAD), and coenzyme A (CoA). Nucleotides are metabolic regulators. Cyclic adenosine 5'-monophosphate (cyclic AMP) is a ubiquitous mediator of the action of many hormones. Covalent modifications introduced by ATP alter the activities of some enzymes as exemplified by the phosphorylation of glycogen and the adenylation of glutamine synthetase (43).

Evidently, purines and pyrimidines are involved in many aspects of cell intermediary metabolism, supply of high energy phosphates to various active transport systems, and nucleic acid synthesis. Nearly all living organisms appear able to synthesize purine and pyrimidines from simpler precursors (30). The purines which are synthesized by the cells into purine nucleotides either originated by cellular biosynthesis from smaller molecules or formed from dietary purines. Preformed purines in food are liberated from their nucleotides by hydrolytic enzymes contained in pancreatic and intestinal secretions. Some of the nucleosides may be absorbed intact from digested food or may be degraded to the free purine bases (3).

Free purines and pyrimidines formed by degradation of nucleic acids are salvaged and reused for the synthesis of nucleotides and nucleic acids or may undergo degradation to yield nitrogenous and products that are excreted. The purines are ultimately degraded to allantoin and other end products by some vertebrates and to uric acid by man (43, 30) and insects (5, 16). Biochemistry of uric acid in insects is considered on Appendix I. In man overproduction of uric acid and its deposition in cartilage results in gout. Genetic failure in humans of the salvage of guanine and hypoxanthine results in the Lesch-Nyhan syndrome (30).

Additionally, nucleotides containing pyrimidines as the base moeity can be interconverted or degraded to uridine, thymidine, and cytidine in insects (5) and uridine monophosphate (UMP), cytidine triphosphate (CTP), and uridine triphosphate (UTP) in man, fungi, and bacteria (43, 30). A defect of pyrimidine metabolism, orotic aciduria, results from a gross deficiency of the bifunctional enzyme system orotatephosphoribosyltransferase and orotidylate decarboxylase. Deficiency of pyrimidine 5'-nucleotidase results in hemolytic anemia and prominent basophilic stippling of red cells (4).

Knowing the importance of purines and pyrimidines in cellular

biochemistry it has been vital to elucidate the mechanisms by which they and their analogs interact in biological systems. Surprisingly then, it is known that purines and pyrimidines exert a toxic effect in cultured mammalian cells, prokaryotes, and other systems.

Present concepts about purine and pyrimidine toxicity have been derived from the studies done with <u>Escherichia coli</u> (31), human lymphoblasts (22), neuroblastoma cells (42), HeLa carcinoma cells (45), human red blood cells (2), rabbit neutrophil cells (15), rats (40), mammalian cell culture (25, 36, 20, 11), L5178Y cells (14), <u>Malus</u> <u>domestica</u> explants (41), chinese hamster cells (44, 8, 39, 33, 34), mouse L1210 leukemia cells (32), S49 T-cell lymphoma (19), fibroblastic or lymphoid cells lines (46, 47, 49, 17, 12, 18), and <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u> (23, 26, 27).

Some of these studies illustrate the commonality of the synthesis and metabolism of nucleotide precursors in mammals, insects and even prokaryotes in regard to purine and pyrimidine toxic effects. For instance, <u>de novo</u> purine biosynthetic pathways in chinese hamster cells and <u>Escherichia coli</u> are both affected by exogenous adenine (28). The mechanism of adenine toxicity in <u>Escherichia coli</u> has been explained by Levine and Taylor (31). They observe that the ability of guanosine to prevent adenine toxicity indicates that adenine exerts its toxic effects by depleting guanine nucleotide pools. It is also known that adenine becomes lethal for chinese hamster fibroblasts when an adenosine analog (coformycin) is also present in the medium. The lethal effect is reversible by hypoxanthine which suggests that cells are starved of vitally needed inosine monophosphate (IMP) by simultaneous shutoff of the purine de novo biosynthesis pathway and the deamination of adenosine and adenylate (44). Another source of adenine toxicity is the depression of pyrimidine as well as purine nucleotide synthesis that results from lowering the phosphoribosylyrophosphate (PP-ribose-P) levels (6).

Studies done in cultured L1210 leukemia cells (25) have shown that adenine enhances dThd (thymidine) mediated inhibition of cell growth and alterations of deoxyribonucleotide pools.

Additionally, it has been found that adenine and adenosine are toxic to human lymphoblast mutants defective in purine salvage enzymes (22). The results of this study showed that adenine and adenosine may be directly toxic to cells. It is suggested that there may exist purine receptors that are involved in mediating effects on cells. Alternatively these purines may directly interfere with an intracellular enzyme (or enzymes) to interrupt one or more pathways essential for normal growth.

Savaiano and Clifford (40) studying the effects of adenine, uracil, and uridine on rats found that there was a growth inhibitory effect due to adenine which was intensified by uridine and partially reversed by uracil. They suggest that the inhibitory effect of adenine was due to an interference with pyrimidine synthesis since the inhibitory effects could be reversed in microbial and mammalian cells with pyrimidine supplements.

Gudas et al., (19), using the S49 T-cell lymphoma system for the study of immunodeficiency disease showed that variants lacking hypoxanthine-guanine phosphoribosyl transferase (HGPRT) or adenine phosphoribosyl transferase (APRT) are sensitive to the killing action of adenosine. They pointed out that at low concentrations adenosine must be phosphorylated to deplete the cells of pyrimidine nucleotides and pyrophosphoribosylphosphate (PP-ribose-P) and to promote the accumulation of orotate. These alterations account for one mechanism of adenosine toxicity.

Wen-Cheng Tseng et al., (45), in their studies with HeLa carcinoma cells, observed that an adenine analog, 9-B-D-arabino-furanosyl-2-fluroradenine (2-F-araA), inhibited the growth of HeLa cells by 50 % at a concentration of 0.25 μ M and depressed the replication of herpes simplex virus Type 1 and Type 2 by 99 %. They stated that the cytotoxic action of 2-F-araA may be due, in part to a self potentiating inhibitor of DNA synthesis.

Green and Chan (18) have found that in the presence of 1×10^{-4} to 1×10^{-5} M of adenosine, established cell lines of fibroblastic or lymphoid origin died of pyrimidine starvation. Less than lethal concentrations inhibited cell growth. Over a broad concentration range, the effects of adenosine were prevented by providing a suitable pyrimidine source.

Upchurch and Gabridge (46) examining the role of <u>de novo</u> purine metabolism in normal lung fibroblasts and Lesch-Nyhan fibroblasts (cells deficient in HGPRT) suggested that interference with <u>de novo</u> purine synthesis in cells played a critical role in the induction of cytotoxicity in Mycoplasma pneumoniae infected cells.

Ishii and Green (25) working with mouse 3T6 cells found that adenosine inhibited growth of these cells. They suggested that pyrimidine synthesis was blocked due to inhibition of the enzyme orotidylate phosphorylase.

According to Ho et al., (23), addition of purines (adenine and guanine) but not pyrimidines (cytosine and thymine) to the nutrient medium of <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u> affect its development. This study suggested that the supplementation of purines and pyrimidines in the

diet mediates different physiological effects on the metamorphosis of <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u>. It was found that adenine was detrimental to the flies. In addition, this study also showed that adenine changed high pressure liquid chromatography-measured purine-pyrimidine profiles in the larval and pupal stages, but had no effect on the profiles in adult flies. Ho et al., hypothesized two possibilities to account for the detrimental effects of adenine in these experiments. First, the ovulation by parental flies might have been impaired due to the ingestion of adenine, and second, the development of the larva may have been inhibited due to the ingestion of adenine.

It also has been shown that a deficiency of ademinephosphoribosyltransferase (APRT) activity is the primary biochemical defect of <u>Drosophila</u> selected for resistance to purine-induced lethality (26). Johnson and Friedman have investigated the mechanisms of purine-induced lethality in the wild type and the resistance to purine-mediated lethality in two mutants of <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u>. They claim that purineinduced lethality in wild type <u>Drosophila</u> might result from the anabolic metabolism of purine through a salvage pathway leading to the synthesis of a toxic nucleotide. They conclude that a deficiency for the majority of APRT activity permits <u>Drosophila</u> to survive high concentrations of purine. It is possible that purine, a competitive inhibitor of mammalian APRT, is an alternative substrate for APRT and that the product of this reaction is the lethal agent.

Most recently, Johnson and Friedman (27) have found that purine resistant <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u> result from the mutations in the APRT structural gene. They note that genetic mapping and complementation analysis demonstrate that purine resistance, deficiency of APRT

activity, and differences in the isoelectric point of APRT result from alterations at a single locus. They also say that level of APRT activity shows gene dose dependence in Aprt (purine resistant mutant) heterozygotes and in flies that are haploid for different alleles. As a conclusion of this study, it is suggested that Aprt contains the structural gene for APRT.

The present study was designed to correlate findings between the work of Ho, et al. on <u>Drosophila</u> flies with <u>Drosophila</u> cells in culture. It was of interest to elucidate if purine and pyrimidine bases affect <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells in the same manner that they affected <u>Drosophila</u> flies and mainly to determine the range of adenine toxicity on <u>Drosoph-</u> ila cells.

This work also would compare <u>in situ</u> with the <u>in vitro</u> studies using inhibitors of adenine metabolism and/or analogues to gain insights into toxicity mechanisms. Additionally, analysis of the end product of normal metabolism, uric acid, would be done to detect effects of exogenous adenine.

Experimental Cells

The <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cell line was obtained from Dr. Terrel Johnson at Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.

The <u>Hep-2</u> cell line was obtained from the Kansas Department of Health at Topeka, Kansas.

Cell Culture

<u>KC-H Drosophila</u> cells were grown in normal growth medium, D-22 medium plus 10 % calf serum (K. C. Biologicals, Lenexa, Kansas). This medium was prepared as described by Lucy Cherbas and Varda Chilo based on Echalier, 1976 (Appendix II). D-22 medium without serum was used to wash the cell monolayers before splitting and challenging them with purine antimetabolites, purine intermediates as well as with purine and pyrimidine bases. Analysis of the D-22 medium plus 10 % calf serum and D-22 without serum were done in the Department of Nutrition, University of California at Davis. The data from this analysis indicated that the samples tested had extremely low levels of purines and pyrimidines (Appendix III, IV and V).

To split the cells, flasks containing 1 ml of cell suspension and 4 ml of D-22 plus 10 % calf serum were incubated for 7 days until the cells were completely monolayered. The old medium was removed from the flasks and the cells were gently washed with 1 ml of D-22 without serum. Then, 5 ml of D-22 plus 10 % calf serum were added to the flasks to strongly wash cells down from the flasks. One ml of cell suspension was placed in a 25 cm² plastic tissue culture flask containing D-22 plus 10 % calf serum and the challenging reagent. A final volume of 5 ml was adjusted to reach the final desired concentration of test substance.

To make viable cell counts, 0.5 ml of Erythrosin B was mixed with 4.5 ml of D-22 serum-free medium (diluent medium). Then, 0.5 ml of cells were mixed with 4.5 ml of diluent medium. To make the final diluted cell suspension, 0.5 ml of diluted cells were mixed with 4.5 ml of diluted stain. To obtain total and viable counts, both sides of a Neubauer chamber were filled with the diluted cell suspension. The cells were allowed to settle for 1 minute and with the low power objective in place, the ruled area of the chamber was focussed. Cells that appeared in the four corner squares were enumerated. Single cells with well-defined nuclei and surrounding cytoplasm were counted. Clumps of cells in which individual nuclei and cytoplasm were easily visible, each cell was counted. When individual cells were not easily discernible as such, clumps were counted as a single cell. The total number of cells in all four corner squares were divided by four to find the average number of cells per square. The average number of cells per square times 10,000 (correction factor) X dilution factor (10) gave the cell count/ml.

<u>Hep-2</u> cells were grown in Eagles Minimum Essential Medium (Gibco, Grand Island, NY) plus 10 % calf serum (K. C. Biologicals, Lenexa, KS), using standard mammalian cell culture technique (MC-702 Lab manual). Stock Solutions

Adenine (Aldrich Chemical Co., Inc., Milwaukee, WI), cytosine (Nutritional Biochemicals Corporation, Cleveland, OH), guanine (Nutritional Biochemicals Corporation, Cleveland, OH), thymine (NBCO, Cleveland, OH), hypoxanthine (NBCO, Cleveland, OH), inosine (Sigma Chemical Company, St. Louis, MO), xanthine (NBCO, Cleveland, OH), purine (Sigma Chemical Company, St. Louis, MO) at 4.08x10⁻²M were made in deionized glass-distilled water, sterilized by autoclaving and stored in 25 ml quantities at 4°C.

Aminopterin (Sigma Chemical Company, St. Louis, MO and Fluka Chemical Corporation, Hauppauge, NY) at 1.9 ng/ml, .19 ng/ml, and .019 ng/ml were made in deionized glass-distilled water, sterilized by a filter membrane (0.22 μ m) filtration, and stored at -20°C.

Azaguanine (Fluka Chemical Corporation, Hauppauge, NY) at 76 μ g/ml was made in D-22 plus 10 % calf serum (K. C. Biologicals, Lenexa, KS), sterilized by a filter membrane (0.22 m) and immediately used.

Uric acid (Sigma Chemical Co., St. Louis, MO) at 2 mgs % was made in D-22 without serum, sterilized by membrane (0.22 µm) filtration and stored in 100 ml quantities at 4°C.

Gentamicin (Shering Corporation, Keneworth, NJ and United States Biochemical Corporation, Cleveland, OH) at 2.5 mgs/ml was made in D-22 medium, sterilized by a filter membrane (0.22 μ m) filtration and stored in 10 ml quantities at 4°C.

Uric Acid Assay

For unic acid determinations, control and treated cells were strongly washed from the flasks. Cell suspensions were centrifuged at 5,000 rpm for 5 minutes. Pellets and supernatants were separated. The supernatant, was evaporated on a watch-glass and then resuspended in 1.2 ml of distilled water.

One-half ml of samples were placed into vials that contained the uricase and into clean dry tubes labeled total. Lateral shaking of the vials was done to dissolve the uricase. The vials with the samples were incubated at room temperature for 20 minutes. Then 8.5 ml of distilled water was added to the vials and tubes and mixed. One-half ml of sodium tungstate at 10 % concentration was added. The vials and the tubes were mixed thoroughly and the mixture was filtered through Wathman No. 1 paper filter to obtain clear protein-free solutions. Two tubes were labeled for each sample as total and residual plus one tube labeled blank to which four ml of distilled water was added. Four ml of protein-free solution was added to the other tubes. Then 1.5 ml of sodium carbonate and 1 ml of phosphotungstate were added to all the tubes. The tubes were mixed by inversion several times. All the tubes were incubated at room temperature for 15 minutes. A Baush & Lomb spectophotometer with 700 um wavelength filter was used to determine uric acid concentrations. The actual uric acid concentration was obtained by subtracting the residual uric acid concentration from the total uric acid concentration.

Experimental Protocol

In the first type of experiments, <u>KC-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells were exposed to the purine and pyrimidine bases adenine, cytosine, thymine, and guanine by themselves at $2x10^{-2}$ % and to a combination of bases; adenine plus thymine, adenine plus cytosine, adenine plus guanine, and adenine plus cytosine plus thymine plus guanine at $1.30x10^{-3}$ M, respectively. Percentage of monolayering in cell culture was monitored and recorded each day during a seven day incubation period at 25°C. Non-treated cells were used as the control.

In the second experiment, the LD_{50} for adenine was determined using cells exposed to adenine at different concentration between $1.5x10^{-3}M$ and $1.5x10^{-7}M$. Percentage of monolayering cells was recorded and cell counts as well as uric acid determinations at the end of the incubation period.

A third experiment used <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells exposed to adenine at 1.5×10^{-3} M for 6h, 12h, and 24h. The 7 day-incubation period was

RESULTS

Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to bases

The monolayering process of cells is a good indicator of how the cells are dividing and multiplying to complete their normal life cycle. This process was monitored when <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells were exposed to the purine and pyrimidine bases adenine, thymine, cytosine, and guanine as well as a combination of adenine plus the remaining bases by themselves to study the effect of these bases in cultured insect cells.

<u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells cultured in normal growth medium plus the bases, shows that adenine at 1.5×10^{-3} M is highly detrimental to the cells (Fig. 1) while guanine, cytosine, and thymine at the same concentration did not affect the normal growth of the cells. Cultures of <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells that had been treated with a combination of adenine-cytosine, adenine-thymine, and adenine-guanine showed (Fig. 2) that one mechanism to overcome adenine toxicity is to add any of the other purine or pyrimidine bases to the cells growing in normal growth medium.

LD50 for adenine

<u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells were exposed to different concentrations of adenine between 1.5×10^{-3} M to 1.5×10^{-7} M to detect the LD₅₀. The results in Table 1 demonstrate that the lethal dose in these cells was about 2.2×10^{-4} M. This value represents the dose of adenine that killed half of the cell population during the time of exposure to adenine (Table 1).

Recovery of cells exposed to adenine

This experiment used exposure of cells to adenine at 1.5×10^{-3} M for short and long periods of time as detailed in the materials and methods. It was found that another mechanism for Kc-H Drosophila cells

Fig. 1. <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cells cultured in normal growth medium plus purine and pyrimidine bases (1.5x 10-3M).

.

-



15

.

÷

Fig. 2. Cells treated with a combination of purine and pyrimidine bases.

-



Mortality Ratio*1	Percent	Dead* ²
5.35/6.015	89	%
4.865/7.91	62	%
3.745/9.04	41	%
2.985/11.51	26	z
2.035/13.045	16	z
1.360/27.72	5	z
0.785/16.52	47	z
0.31/18.423	1.6	7
	Mortality Ratio*1 5.35/6.015 4.865/7.91 3.745/9.04 2.985/11.51 2.035/13.045 1.360/27.72 0.785/16.52 0.31/18.423	Mortality Ratio*1Percent5.35/6.015894.865/7.91623.745/9.04412.985/11.51262.035/13.045161.360/27.7250.785/16.52470.31/18.4231.6

*¹ <u>Mortality ratio</u>: relation of the cumulated values of the total number of dead cells and the cumulated values of the total number of survived cells.

*² <u>Percent dead</u>: This value was determined by dividing the cumulated values of the total number of dead cells by the cumulated values of the total number of cells.

LD₅₀: 2.2×10^{-4} M was determined by the interpolation of the % of cells affected at concentrations next above 50 % and the % cells affected at concentrations next below 50 %.

to overcome adenine toxicity beside supplementation with either purine or pyrimidine is re-exposing adenine-treated cells to normal growth medium (D-22 plus 10 % calf serum). This also showed that toxicity is based on length of adenine exposure. The longer the cells were stressed the fewer cells were alive at the end of the test. <u>Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to adenine and its relationship to uric</u>

acid

Cells exposed to adenine at 1.5×10^{-3} M for 12h, 24h, and 48h were tested for uric acid production. Uric acid determinations done in both cell pellets and supernatants showed (Fig. 3) that the amount of uric acid was greater in the supernatants than in the cell pellets. Figure 3 also shows that the supernatant concentrations of uric acid in adenine-treated cells decreased with time.

An earlier experiment (Table 2) found that the amount of uric acid/cell is greater at any concentration of adenine than in the control. This table also shows that the highest concentration of adenine tested $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} \text{M})$ was detrimental to the cells since 51 % of the cells died when they were exposed to this concentration. This result complements the finding that adenine-treated cells could be recovered once they are supplemented with normal growth medium. The rationale for the explanation of these results are that adenine-treated cells loose their capacity of attachment to the culture flask, and therefore, their monolayering capacity, but not their ability to grow and survive in their appropriate environment.

Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to purine antimetabolites

The cells were treated with aminopterin (0.57 to 5.7 μ g/ml); aminopterin at the same concentrations plus adenine at 1.5x10⁻³M; Fig. 3. Uric Acid Production by <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> Adenine $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} M)$ -Treated Cells.

`

~



Time in hours

id/cell
-6 mgs %
6 mgs %
-6 mgs %
-6 mgs %
6 mgs %
6 mgs %
⁶ mgs %
-6 mgs %
· · · ·

Table 2. The effects of various adenine concentrations on the viability and uric acid levels of cultured Kc-H Drosophila cells.

allopurinol at 8.3×10^{-6} M and azaguanine at 76 µg/ml. It was found that any concentration of aminopterin, the cells exhibited their normal growth with the formation of confluent monolayers. Aminopterin did not help the cells to overcome the adenine toxicity. This experiment also showed that azaguanine at 76 µg/ml is highly detrimental to the <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cells. From studies of cells exposed to a combination of allopurinol-adenine, and allopurinol-purine intermediates it was found that allopurinol seems to help the <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cells to overcome xanthine and hypoxanthine toxicity but not adenine toxicity (Table 4).

Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to purine intermediates

Cells exposed to hypoxanthine, xanthine, and inosine at 3.38×10^{-3} M showed that they were susceptible to hypoxanthine and xanthine but not to inosine (Table 3). Uric acid determinations in the supernatants found that the amount of uric acid was greater in hypoxanthine and xanthine-treated cells than that of inosine and control cells (Fig. 4).

Cells exposed to the intermediates at 1.5×10^{-3} M, respectively plus thymine at 1.5×10^{-3} M showed that thymine helps the cells overcome the detrimental effects of hypoxanthine and xanthine. Uric acid determinations showed that the amounts of uric acid production decreased with the addition of thymine to the flasks containing the cells growing in normal growth medium plus hypoxanthine and xanthine (Fig. 5).

Cells were also tested for sensitivity in normal growth medium to purine and 2,6 diaminopurine at 1.5x10⁻³M, respectively. Cell susceptibility to purine was demonstrated while 2,6 diaminopurine did not affect normal cell growth (Table 4).

Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to Thymidine

The results showed that cells were highly sensitive to thymidine

Treatment	<u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells	Hep-2 cells
Adenine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M)	Toxic	Toxic
Guanine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M)	Not Toxic	Partially toxic*
Cytosine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M)	Not Toxic	Not Toxic
Thymine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M)	Not Toxic	Not Toxic
Hypoxanthine (3.38x10 ⁻³ M)	Toxic	Not Toxic
Inosine (3.38x10 ⁻³ M)	Not Toxic	Not Toxic
Xanthine $(3.38 \times 10^{-3} M)$	Toxic	Not Toxic
Allopurinol (8.3x10 ⁻⁶ M)	Not Toxic	Not Toxic
Thymidine (50 µM/ml)	Toxic	Toxic
Aminopterin (76 µg/ml)	Not Toxic	Partially toxic*
Azaguanine (76 µg/ml)	Toxic	Toxic
Adenine + Thymine (1.5x10 ⁻³ M ea.)	Thymine helped to overcome adenine toxicity	Thymine helped to overcome adenine toxicity

Table 3. Comparative effects of various purines and pyrimidines on the growth of $\frac{Kc-H}{Lep-2}$ cells.

*25-30 % of controls

.

Fig. 4. Uric acid production (mgs %) by inosine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine Kc-H Drosophila treated cells.



Fig. 5. Uric Acid Production by <u>Drosophila</u> cells after Purine Intermediates-Thymine Treatment.

.





·		
Treatment	Comments	
Allopurinol-Adenine	Allopurinol did help the cells to partially overcome adenine toxicity.	
Allopurinol-Hypoxanthine	Allopurinol did help the cells to overcome hypoxanthine toxicity.	
Allopurinol-Inosine	Cells grew well and formed confluent monolayers.	
Allopurinol-Xanthine	Allopurinol did help the cells to overcome xanthine toxicity.	
Hypoxanthine-Thymine	Thymine did help the cells to overcome hypoxanthine toxicity.	
Inosine-Thymine	Cells grew well and formed confluent monolayers.	
Xanthine-Thymine	Thymine did help the cells to overcome xanthine toxicity.	
Aminopterin-Adenine	Aminopterin did not help the cells to overcome adenine toxicity.	
Thymidine-Adenine	Thymidine (10 μ M/ml) did help the cells to overcome adenine toxicity.	
Aminopterin-Thumidine-Adenine	Aminopterin + Thymidine (10 µM/ml) did not help the cells to overcome adenine toxicity.	
Aminopterin-Thymidine (10 µM/ml)	Cells grew well and formed confluent monolayers.	
Exogenous Uric Acid	Cells could grow and monolayered normally under this treatment.	
Purine	Cells were susceptible to this treatment.	
2,6 diaminopurine	Did not affect normal growth.	
Thymidine (10 µM/ml)	Did not affect normal growth	

Table 4. Summary of the Results from the <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> treatment with certain combinations of Purine and Pyrimidine derivatives.

at 50 μ M/ml and resistant to thymidine at 10 μ M/ml. Cells treated with aminopterin (0.57 to 5.7 μ g/ml and 76 μ g/ml) plus thymidine at 10 μ M/ml grew and monolayered well during the time of exposure. It also was found that cells exposed to thymidine-adenine (10 μ M/ml and 1.5x10⁻⁵M respectively) could overcome adenine toxicity while cells exposed to adenine-aminopterin-thymidine (1.5x10⁻³M, 1.7 μ g/ml, and 10 μ M/ml respectively) did not overcome the toxic effect (Table 4). Kc-H Drosophila cells exposed to exogenous uric acid

Exposure of the cells to exogenous uric acid (1.44 %) showed that the cells can grow and monolayer normally under this treatment (Table 4). Uric acid determinations done in the supernatants of uric acidtreated cells for seven days (old monolayers) revealed that uric acid production was 0.75 mgs % while in the control cells the uric acid production was 1.00 mgs %. There was a 1.33 fold increase in uric acid in control cells which is not significant when compared to the 79 fold increase in uric acid production between the control and adenine $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} M)$ -exposed cells (Table 2). This result indicates that exogenous uric acid seems not to affect Kc-H Drosophila cells.

<u>Hep-2</u> cells received the same treatment as <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells to establish some differences between them and to gain some insights about their physiology. The results showed that <u>Hep-2</u> cells were susceptible to adenine $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} \text{M})$, aminopterin (.57 to 5.7 µg/ml), thymidine 50 µM/ml), and azaguanine 76 µg/ml). The cells grew and formed confluent monolayers, at the end of the incubation period, when they were treated with purine intermediates, or thymine, and allopurinol. Monolayering with guanine-treated cells was in a range of 25-30 %. Adenine's toxic effect on <u>Hep-2</u> cells, as well as on <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells was overcome by the addition of thymine $(1.5 \times 10^{-3} \text{M})$ to the normal

DISCUSSION

The results of the present study have shown clearly that adenine at 1.5×10^{-3} M is highly toxic to the <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cell line, confirming previous studies about adenine's toxic effects on other noninsect systems (31, 22, 45, 40, 44, 28, 6). The fact that the adenine toxic effect on <u>Drosophila</u> cells could be overcome by the supplementation of the other purine and pyrimidine bases (Fig. 2), leads to the assumption that there is a possible correlation between purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis. The observation that the toxic effects of purine bases are associated with a block of pyrimidine synthesis and that toxicity is completely or partially reversed by thymine and cytosine suggests that inhibition of pyrimidine synthesis may be responsible for the toxic effect of adenine to Kc-H Drosophila cells.

Previous studies have shown inhibition of pyrimidines synthesis by by purine bases (13, 37). It also is known that purine and pyrimidine pathways are linked by means of a common substrate, phosphoribosylpyrophosphate (PP-ribose-P), as shown in Fig. 6. This information supports the hypothesis that inhibition of pyrimidine synthesis by adenine might occur by a decrease of PP-ribose-P concentration probably by dimishing intracellular PP-ribose-P levels within the cells.

It is known that repression of specific enzyme synthesis regulates purine biosynthesis in mammalian cells (35), organisms including lower eukaryotes (9), and vertebrates (21). This suggests that a mechanism for the acute toxic effect of adenine to <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cells is a feed-back inhibition of the <u>de novo</u> biosynthetic pathway. Henderson's studies (21), strongly support this hypothesis. He found that adenine and hypoxanthine are potent inhibitors of <u>de novo</u> purine biosynthesis in Erlich ascites tumor cells, and the conversion of the added purines Fig. 6. Purine and Pyrimidine Biosynthetic Pathways.

- Phosphoribosyl Pirophosphate, common substrate for purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis.
 Aminopterin inhibitory action.
 & 4. Allopurinol inhibitory action.





acid. Thus, adenine toxicity appears to be due both to a uric acid contribution from catabolism of adenine plus its ability to feed-back and starve the cells for pyrimidines.

Further observations from this work also support the above two conclusions about Kc-H Drosophila cells. Experiments with cells plus xanthine-thymine and hypoxanthine-thymine supplemented media, found thymine neutralizing the toxic effects of xanthine and hypoxanthine on Drosophila cells. The finding supports the hypothesis of a possible connection between purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis. The exact mechanisms by which a pyrimidine derivative, such as thymine, regulates the de novo purine biosynthesis in Drosophila cells remain to be elucidated. Nevertheless, it may be suggested that thymine allows a bypass of the levels of PP-ribose-P, the common substrate that links purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis. Further studies need to be done to measure the PP-ribose-P levels in Drosophila cells treated with adenine and the purine intermediates, hypoxanthine and xanthine, plus thymine. Double isotopes experiments (17) for assay seems to be appropriate.

Previous investigators (24) have shown that both purine and 2,6 diaminopurine (purine-base analogs) are highly toxic to egg and larval development in <u>Drosophila</u> flies. The present study showed a correlation with those findings in regard to purine, which was highly toxic to <u>Drosophila</u> cells, while 2,6 diaminopurine did not affect normal growth. This phenomenon could be explained as due to the compound's solubility and hence its capacity to get incorporated into the cells. According to the biochemistry of these compounds (38), purine is more soluble in water than 2,6 diaminopurine, which needs alkali and heat to become soluble. Consequently, it could be suggested that purine being more

soluble than 2,6 diaminopurine could easily gain incorporation into the cells and exert its actions by inhibiting purine synthesis <u>de novo</u> through a mechanism of enzyme feed-back inhibition. Conversely 2,6 diaminopurine, probably due to its poor solubility, could not gain entry into the cells and allowed them to follow normal metabolism, thus, no toxicity could be seen by the treatment of <u>Drosophila</u> cells with this compound. This hypothesis is also supported by Ho's studies (24) on the effects of these compounds on the development of <u>Drosophila</u> flies. The suggestion for further studies to look at the incorporation of purine and 2,6 diaminopurine by <u>Drosophila</u> cells is proposed to resolve into issue. Radioactive tracers would be the suggested technology.

Thymidine, a constituent of nucleic acids, also was tested for its outcome with fly cell cultures. The results of this assay found Drosophila cells resistant to thymidine at 10 μ M/ml. It was also found that thymidine did help cells to overcome adenine toxic effects. However, the neutralization of thymidine protective effects was seen when the cells were co-treated with aminopterin and adenine. These results showed once again the possible regulatory connection between purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis since thymidine, which is in the pyrimidine metabolic pathway (Fig. 6) was seen exerting effects on the purine metabolic pathway of adenine. It could be hypothesized that the probable mechanisms by which thymidine exerts its protective effect toward Drosophila adenine-treated cells are similar to that already explained for thymine and cytosine. It was suggested that adenine may interfere with pyrimidine biosynthesis by lowering the intracellular levels of PP-ribose-P leading to the death of the cells by means of PP-ribose-P starvation.

potent inhibitor of dihydrofolate reductase, an enzyme crucial to both purine and thymidilate synthesis (48, 7). Surprisingly, aminopterin by itself neither caused a toxic effect on Drosophila cells nor alleviated adenine toxic effects. Conversely, aminopterin neutralized thymidine protective effects toward adenine-treated cells when aminopterin was added to adenine-thymidine supplemented media. Α synergistic effect, where aminopterin and adenine combine actions to inhibit neutralizing thymidine effects, is suggested to explain the death of the cells by adenine-aminopterin-thymidine treatment. The mechanisms by which aminopterin, by itself, was not able to exert any effect on Drosophila cells are not well understood and difficult to interpret. The lack of aminopterin incorporation into the cells or an enzymatic inhibitory reaction is a possibility, but seems unlikely since aminopterin inhibited thymidine protective effects toward adeninetreated cells. Thus, further studies are suggested to study the exact mechanisms of aminopterin action on Kc-H Drosophila cells. Radioactive tracers would be a suggested technology.

8-azaguanine, a purine antimetabolite and an effective antitumor agent, although not a substrate, is a potent xanthine oxidase inhibitor. 8-azaguanine has a high degree of affinity for the xanthine oxidase active center which lowers the activity of this enzyme preventing the substrate from binding (10). On the basis of this information and as a result of this study, which found 8-azaguanine to be highly toxic to <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cells, it could be inferred that this compound chemically altered the conversion of hypoxanthine to xanthine or the conversion of xanthine to uric acid. These are the two steps where xanthine oxidase has its action on the purine catabolism, limiting the oxidation of the substrate(s) and therefore inhibiting normal purine degradation

within the cells. It is suggested that <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cell line would be a good system to explore the possible relationship between the inhibition, <u>in vitro</u>, of xanthine oxidase and the carcinostatic activities of certain compounds, such as pyrazolopyrimidines, which have been considered inhibitors and substrates of xanthine oxidase as well as other carcinostatic agents (10).

The lack of effects of exogenous uric acid in <u>Drosophila</u> cells can be explained by the high insolubility that characterizes this compound (38). It is suggested that exogenous uric acid did not get incorporated into the cells, consequently, the cells were not affected by the compound. However, it is clear that the hyperproduction of uric acid by adenine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine treatments caused a toxic effect on <u>Drosophila</u> cells.

The results obtained with <u>Hep-2</u> cell studies were the same as those obtained with <u>Drosophila</u> cells with the exception that guanine and aminopterin treatments showed a partial toxicity toward <u>Hep-2</u> cells (Table 3). These compounds have been found to be toxic to Erlich ascites cells (21), human carcinoma cells (43), and yeast (29). Both guanine and aminopterin exert their toxic effects by inhibiting the <u>de</u> <u>novo</u> purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis, respectively. These results imply that the observations and findings with the <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> cell line are valid since these cells behaved as did the Hep-2 cells.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Purine derivatives, such as adenine, have been found to be highly toxic to the <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cell line. The mechanisms proposed are, the block of pyrimidine biosynthesis with a decrease of PP-ribose-P or the feed-back inhibition of the purine synthesis <u>de novo</u>. A hyperproduction of uric acid was found as a result of adenine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine treatments which was reduced by thymine treatment in hypoxanthine and xanthine-treated cells. It is suggested that uric acid may be considered as a factor associated with toxicity. A toxic effect also was seen with the purine-base analog, purine, which was related to the inhibition of the purine synthesis <u>de novo</u> by mechanisms of enzyme feed-back inhibition. The results of the experiment done with thymine, thymidine, cytosine, and guanine treatments brought about the hypothesis of a possible regulatory influence between purine and pyrimidine biosynthesis probably due to the link of these pathways by a common substrate, PP-ribose-P.

Aminopterin was found to be related with the inhibition of thymidine protection of <u>Kc-H</u> <u>Drosophila</u> adenine-treated cells. The death of the cells was suggested to be due to a synergistic effect exerted by adenine and aminopterin, which inhibited thymidine effects. 8azaguanine was found toxic to <u>Drosophila</u> cells. It was suggested that its toxic action was due to the inhibition of xanthine oxidase, which limited the oxidation of the substrates, inhibiting the normal degradation of purines within the cells. <u>Hep-2</u> cells were considered as a control that served to compare the results of this study with those already found in human cell lines as well as to verify the quality of the reagents used.

In conclusion, the goals of this study were accomplished since the

results correlated with the Ho, et al. findings on <u>Drosophila</u> flies with only two exceptions. Firstly, <u>Drosophila</u> cells in culture, seem to be a better system to study bio-sensitivity since the present work showed that concentrations of ademine, 10 fold less than those used by Ho, et al. were able to produce a high toxicity on <u>Drosophila</u> cells. Second, 2,6 diaminopurine did not have the toxic effect observed by the Ho, et al. studies. It is concluded that the exact mechanisms by which certain purine derivatives and intermediates caused toxicity to the <u>Kc-H Drosophila</u> cell line remain to be defined. However, these findings suggest that toxicity could be due to an alteration of pyrimidine biosynthesis at the PP-ribose-P levels. Further studies are suggested to gain insight into the mechanisms that make adenine, hypoxanthine, and xanthine toxic for <u>Drosophila</u> cells. LITERATURE CITED

- 1. Angel, Jack E., ed., <u>Physicians' Desk Reference</u> (New Jersey: Medical Economics Company, Inc., 1983), p. 690.
- Becker, Michael A., Lawrence J. Meyer, Alexander, Wood, and J. Edwin Seegmiller "Purine overproduction in Man Associated with Increased Phosphoribosylpirophosphate Synthetase Activity." <u>Science</u>, 1979(1973), 1123-1126.
- 3. Bondy, Philp K. and Leon E. Rosenberg. <u>Metabolic Control and</u> <u>Disease</u> (Philadelphia/London/Toronto: W.B. Sanders Co., 1980) p. 786.
- Boss, Gerry R. and J. Edwing Seegmiller. <u>Annual Review of</u> <u>Genetics</u> (California: Roman-Campbell-Sandler, 1982), pp. 297-328.
- 5. Candy, D.J. and B.A. Kilby. <u>Insect Biochemistry and Function</u> (London: Chapman and Hall, 1975), pp. 191-199.
- Chen, Jane-Jane and Mary Ellen Jones. "Effect of 5-phosphoribosyll-pyrophosphate on <u>de Novo</u> Pyrimidine Biosynthesis in Cultured Erlich Ascites Cells Made Permeable with Dextran Sulfate 500." <u>The Journal of Biological Chemistry</u>, 254(1979), 2697-2704.
- Davis, Bernard D., Renato Dulbecco, Herman N. Eisen, and Harold S. Ginsberg. <u>Microbiology</u>. New York: Harper and Row, 1980, p. 964.
- Debatisse, M. Berry, and G. Boltin. "The Potentiation of Ademine Toxicity to Chinese Hamster Cells by Coformycin: Suppression in Mutants with Altered Regulation of Purine Biosynthesis or Increased Adenylate-Deaminasa Activity." Journal of Cellular Physiology, 106(1981), 1-11.
- 9. Dorfman, Ben-Zion, Barbara Ann Goldfinger, and Marc Benger. "Partial Reversion in Yeast: Genetic Evidence for a New Type of Bifunctional Protein." <u>Science</u>, 168(1970), 1482-1484.
- Feigelson, Philp, J.D. Dadvison, and Roland K. Robins. "Pyrazolopyrimidines as Inhibitors and Substrates of Xanthine Oxidase." <u>The Journal of Cell Chemistry</u>, 226(1957), 993-1000.
- 11. Fox, I.H., and W.N. Kelley. "Human Phosphoribosylpyrophosphate Synthetase: Kinetic Mechanisms and End Products Inhibition." <u>The Journal of Biological Chemistry</u>, 247(1972), 2126-2131.
- Fox, Irving H., Linda Burk, Guy Planet, Marshall Goren, and Janice Kamisnska. "Pyrimidine Nucleotide Biosynthesis. A Study of Normal Purine Enzyme-Deficient Cells." <u>The Journal of Bio-</u> logical Chemistry, 253(1978), 6794-6800.

- Fox, Irving H., Linda Burk, Guy Planet, Marshal Goren, and Janice Kaminska. "Pyrimidine Nucleotide Biosynthesis." <u>The Journal</u> of <u>Biological Chemistry</u>, 253(1978), 6794-6800.
- 14. Fukui, Massauru, Makoto Inaba, Shigero Tsukogoshi, and Yoshio Sakurai. "New Antitumor Imidazole Derivative, 5-Carbomyl-lHimidazol-4-yl Piperonylate, as an Inhibitor of Purine Synthesis and Its Activation by Adenine Phosphoribosyltransferase." Cancer Research, 42(1982), 1098-1102.
- 15. Garcia-Castro, Ivette, Jose M. Mato, Geetha Vasanthakumer, William P. Wiesmann, Elliot Shifman, and Peter K. Chiang. "Parodoxical Effects of Adenosine on Neuthrophil Chemotaxis." <u>The</u> Journal of Biological Chemistry, 258(1983), 4345-4349.
- 16. Goodwin, T.W. <u>Aspects of Insect Biochemistry</u> (London and New York: Academic Press, 1965), p. 46.
- Gordon, Ross B., Lambert Thompson, Lambro A. Johnson and Bryan T. Emerson. "Regulation of Purine <u>De Novo</u> Synthesis in Cultured Human Fibroblasts: The Role of PP-Ribose-P." <u>Biochimica et</u> <u>Acta</u>, 562(1979), 162-176.
- Green, Howard and Teh-Sheng Chan. "Pyrimidine Starvation by Adenosine in Fibroblasts and Lymphoid Cells: Role of Adenosine Deaminase." <u>Science</u>, 182(1973), 836-837.
- 19. Gudas, Lorraine J., Amos Cohen, Buddy Ullman, and David W. Martin, Jr. "Analysis of Adenosine-Mediated Pyrimidine Starvation Using Cultured Wild-Type and Mutant Mouse T-Lymphoma Cells." Somatic Cell Genetics, 4(1978), 201-209.
- 20. Gupta, Radhey S. and Moffat, Malcom R.R. "Synergistic Effect of Purine Derivatives on the Toxicity of Pyrazofurin and 6-Azauridine Towards Cultured Mammalian Cells." Journal of Cellular Physiology, 11(1982), 291-294.
- Henderson, J. Frank. "Feedback Inhibition of Purine Biosynthesis in Ascites Tumor Cells." <u>The Journal of Cell Chemistry</u>, 257 (1962), 2631-2635.
- 22. Hershfield, Michael S., Floyd F. Snyder, and J. Edwin Seegmiller. "Adenine and Adenosine are Toxic to Human Lymphoblast Mutants Defective in Purine Salvage Enzymes." <u>Science</u>, 211(1977), 1284-1287.
- 23. Ho, Y.K., C.K. Clifford, R.J. Sobieski, K. Cummings, G. Odokara, and A.J. Clifford. "Effect of Dietary Purines and Pyrimidines on Growth and Development of <u>Drosophila</u>." Accepted for Publication: Journal of Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology.
- 24. Ho, Yen-Kuang, Daniel J. Koehn, and Rodney J. Sobieski. "Effects of Purine Amino Groups on the Development of <u>Drosophila</u>." Submitted for Publication.

- 25. Ishii, K. and H. Green. "Lethality of Adenosine for Cultured Mammalian Cells By Interference with Pyrimidine Biosynthesis." <u>Journal Cell Science</u>, 13(1973), 429-439.
- 26. Johnson, Daniel H., and Thomas B. Friedman. "Purine Resistant Mutants of <u>Drosophila</u> are Adenine Phosphoribosyltransferase Deficient." <u>Science</u>, 212(1981), 1035-1036.
- 27. Johnson, Daniel H., and Thomas B. Friedman. "Purine-resistant <u>Drosophila melanogaster</u> result from mutations in the adenine phosphoribosyltransferase structural gene." <u>Proceedings of</u> <u>the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of</u> <u>America, 80(1983), 2990-2994.</u>
- 28. Kornberg, Arthur. 1982 Supplement of DNA Replication (United States of America: W.H. Freeman and Company, 1982), p. 5-18.
- 29. Kunz, Bernard A. and R.H. Haynes. "DNA Repair and the Genetic Effects of Thymidilate Stress in Yeast." <u>Mutation Research</u>, 193(1982), 353-376.
- Lehninger, Albert L. <u>Biochemistry</u> (New York: Worth Publishers, Inc., 1975), pp. 729-747.
- 31. Levine, Roy A. and Milton W. Taylor. "Mechanisms of Adenine Toxicity in <u>Escherichia coli</u>." <u>Journal of Bacteriology</u>, 149 (1982), 923-930.
- 32. Leyva, Albert, Hillie Appel and Herbert M. Pinado. "Purine Modulation of Thymidine Activity in L1210 Leukemia Cells in Vitro." Leukemia Research, 6(1982), 483-390.
- 33. McBurney, M.W., and G.F. Whitmore. "Isolation and Biochemical Characterization of Folate Deficient Mutants of Chinese Hamster Cells." <u>Cell</u>, 2(1974), 173-182.
- 34. McBurney, M.S. and Gordon F. Whitmore. "Mutants of Chinese Hamster Cells Resistant to Adenosine." Journal of Cellular Physiology, 85(1975), 87-100.
- 35. McFall, Elizabeth and Boris Magasanik. "The Control of Purine Biosynthesis in Cultured Mammalian Cells." <u>The Journal of</u> <u>Biological Chemistry</u>, 235(1960), 2103-2108.
- 36. McGarrity, Gerard J. and Carson, Dennis A. "Adenosine Phosphorylase-Mediated Nucleoside Toxicity." <u>Experimental Cell Research</u>, 139 (1982), 199-205.
- 37. Martin, D.W., and N.T. Owen. "Repression and Depression of Purine Biosynthesis in Mammalian Hepatoma Cells in Culture." <u>The</u> <u>Journal of Biological Chemistry</u>, 247(1972), 5477-5485.
- Merck Index, 9th ed. (New Jersey: Merck & Co., Inc., 1976), pp. 391, 1030, and 1267.

- 39. Peterson, A.R., and Hazel Peterson. "Differences in Temporal Aspects of Mutagenesis and Cytotoxicity in Chinese Hamster Cells Treated with Methylating Agents and Thymidine." <u>Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America</u>, 79(1982), 1643-1647
- 40. Savaino, D.A. and A.J. Clifford. "Effect of Adenine, Uracil, and Uridine on Growth, Urine, Volume, and Kidney Weight of Rats." Nutrition Report International, 1(1978), 57-62.
- 41. Singha, Suman and Loyd E. Powell. "Effect of Purine Analogs and their Interactions with Benzyladenine on Bud Burst and Shoot Growth in Apple (<u>Malus domestica</u> Cultivar Northern Sp.) Bud Explants." Physiologia Plantarum, 47(1979), 167-172.
- 42. Snyder, Floyd F., Michael K. Croikshank, and J. Edwin Seegmiller. "A Comparison of Purine Metabolism and Nucleotides Pools in Normal and Hypoxanthine-Guanine Phosphoribosyltransferase Deficient Neuroblastoma Cells." <u>Biochimica et Biophysica</u> Acta, 543(1978), 556-569.
- 43. Stryer, Lubert. <u>Biochemistry</u> (San Francisco: W.H. Freeman and Company, 1981), pp. 511-536.
- 44. Taylor, Milton W., S. Olivelle, R.A. Levine, K. Coy, H. Hershey, K.C. Gupta, and L. Zawistowich." Regulation of the Novo Purine Biosynthesis in Chinese Hamster Cells." <u>The Journal</u> of <u>Biological Chemistry</u>, 257(1982), 377-380.
- 45. Tseng, Wen-Cheng, David Derse, Yung-Chickeng, Brockman R. Wallace, and Lee Bennet, Jr. "In Vitro Biological Activity of 9-B-Darabinofuranasoyl-2-fluoradenine and the Biochemical Actions of its Triphosphate on DNA Polymerases and Ribonucleotide Reductase from HeLa Cells." Molecular Pharmacology, 21(1982), 474-477.
- 46. Upchurch, Susan and Michael G. Gabridge. "Alterations of Human Lung Fibroblasts Infected with <u>Mycoplasm pneumoniae</u>." <u>In-</u><u>fection and Immunity</u>, 38(1982), 631-636.
- 47. Upchurch, Susan and Michael G. Gabridge. "<u>De Novo</u> Purine Synthesis, Purine Salvage and DNA Synthesis in Normal and Lesch-Nyhan Fibroblasts Infected with <u>Mycoplasm pneumoniae</u>." <u>Infection</u> and Immunity, 39(1983), 164-171.
- 48. Yunis, Jorge J., ed. <u>Molecular Structure of Human Chromosomes</u>. New York/San Francisco/London: Academic Press, 1977, p. 107.
- 49. Zoreff, Esther, Osnat Sivan, and Oded Sperling. "Synthesis and Metabolic Fate of Purine Nucleotides in Cultured Fibroblasts From Normal Subjects and From Purine Overproducing Mutants." <u>Biochimica et Acta</u>, 521(1978), 452-458.

APPENDIX

.

APPENDIX I

<u>Medium D-22 Minus Antibiotics</u> (based on Echalier, 1976). Reagents and procedure for 1,760 ml.

- 1) 7.35 g glutamic acid
 - 3.74 g glycine
 - 50 ml deionized water

Mix and adjust to pH 7.0 with 10N KOH (28.5 g/50 ml) freshly filterated (does not dissolve until near this pH). Adjust to 100 ml with water.

2) 11.76 g glutamic acid

5.98 g glycine

80 ml deionized water

Mix and adjust to pH 7.0 with 10N NaOH (20.5 g/50 ml) freshly filtered. Adjust to 160 ml with water.

3) 1.6 g MgCl₂.6H₂0 5.92 g MgSO₄.7H₂O 0.66 g NaH₂PO₄.H₂O 2.4 g yeastolate (Difco) 1.07 g malic acid 0.0052 g succinic acid 0.024 g sodium acetate 3.2 g glucose

Dissolve in approximately 200 ml of water. Add 86.4 ml of (1) and 150 ml of (2).

4) 24 g lactalbumin hydrolysate, dissolved in approximately 300 ml of water.

5) 1.88 g CaCl₂ in 40 ml of water.

6) Add (3) plus (4). Adjust to approximately 1,600 ml.

7) Add (5) plus (6) plus 3.2 ml of vitamins mix.

Stir all together using 10N KOH to adjust to pH 6.7 exactly.
 Add water for final volume of 1,760 ml.

9) Let sit in the refrigerator overnight to allow some precipitation.

10) Next day, run through Whatman No. 1 filter paper with suction apparatus. Filter through 0.22 μ m Millipore with suction.

11) Store in refrigerator.

Vitamins mix (taken from Grace, 1962) in 1 L. final volume.

10 mg thamine HCl

10 mg riboflavin

10 mg Ca pantothenate

10 mg folic acid

10 mg niacin

10 mg inositol

5 mg biotin

100 mg choline chloride.

Store frozen and in dark.

Biochemistry of uric acid in insects.

Three generalized pathways have been considered to be involved in the uric acid production in insects. First, there is the <u>de novo</u> synthetic process utilizing protein nitrogen and this is usually called the uricotelic pathway. Second, the degradative pathway which nucleic acids or their components are the starting material, this pathway has been referred to as the urocolytic or nucleicolytic pathway. The third, is the pathway whereby uric acid is degraded in insect tissues, and for which the term uricolytic pathway should be reserved.

Nucleicolytic uric acid production mechanisms in insects.



Adopted from Insect Biochemistry and Function (London: Chapman and Hall, 1975), p. 198.

APPENDIX III. Purine and Pyrimidine Standard Levels

,

(R) www.sumywat.calit.p.n (3)-906367-00



STANDARD

APPENDIX IV. Data from the analysis of D-22 medium without 10 % Calf Serum to detect the levels of purine and pyrimidine bases.



D-22 NEDIUM VITHOUT CALF SERIER

•

- .

.

APPENDIX V. Data from the analysis of D-22 medium plus 10 % Calf Serum to detect the levels of purine and pyrimidine bases. .





.

,